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ESSEX PLACE-NAMES PROJECT.

The Essex Place-names Project is a County-wide survey to record place- and field-names from historical documents such as Tithe maps and apportionments, estate maps, sale 

and auction catalogues, conveyances, terriers, deeds, rolls, inquisitions and surveys.

The second element of the Project is to investigate on-the-ground visible remains which correspond to the Place-names for actual or potential archaeological, agricultural and industrial 

sites, and to record natural (topographical) and man-made features which may relate to the Place-name. This involves field-survey in rural and outside investigation in built-up areas.

It is anticipated that the Project will lead to identification of archaeological sites and lost historic buildings;  it will enable analysis of indicators of early settlement, land  holding, agricultural and industrial practices of the County.  It will refine the more precise meaning of descriptive words and elements used by earlier settlers as they gave names appropriate to the topography of the landscape of their time.

For convenience the surveys are based on the parish, recognising that present civil parish boundaries are not necessarily identical to former ecclesiastical boundaries.  Local Recorders 

are supplied with templates of Record Forms to ensure consistency of recording across the County, and forward completed forms to a Central Coordinator for  transfer to a county 

computer database which is available to researchers on the internet at www.essex.ac.uk/history/esah/essexplacenames, and updated periodically. 

This publication presents part of the information recorded from the Tithe or Estate Award and Map, and from other documents for this parish. The full record is contained on the master 

database at Essex County Council (Historic Environment Section) and on the (above) website. Parish books are available to be downloaded from the website link ‘Books’ on the Home page. Please notify errors to the Project Coordinator at the Essex Record Office. 

      THE TITHE  MAP AND APPORTIONMENT.
Since medieval times a tenth of the produce of land and stock had been paid by landholders to the church.  At the Dissolution of the  Monasteries, the property of many religious houses, 

including the right to collect tithes, passed into lay hands.  The Tithe Commutation Act which received Royal assent on 13th August 1836 abolished a rent payable in kind and 

substituted rent-charges apportioned on each plot or parcel. The tithe-rent  payable was assessed on the average value of  wheat, barley and oats and was to fluctuate with price movements.

The commutation could be by voluntary agreement between the local owners and payers or, if agreement failed, could be compulsorily imposed by commissioners.  A Valuer was to be 

appointed to apportion the rent of each parcel of land and tenants could deduct that rent-charge from their rent paid to the landlord.  The task fell to the Tithe Commissioners to produce a 

map and an Apportionment (Award).  A large-scale survey was produced for over 70% of England and Wales in the following 9 years, and about another 8% up to 1855. Most of the 

parishes in Essex were surveyed.  The map scales vary. The Award records ownership, tenancy and land-use, field by field and parcel by parcel (often quoting the field name) with the 

ground area and rent-charge.  

Land that was tithe-free tends to be less accurately mapped and contains few if any of the details recorded for those parcels subject to tithe.  Rights of way and  roads also tend to be 

neglected. Boundaries of the tithe areas are shown as are some natural features such as streams, ponds, gardens, greens and commons. Buildings are often shown coloured red if dwellings 

or grey if  not.  Because the Award may have been agreed only some time after the map was finished, discrepancies occur between the two.  Enclosure Awards, when extant, usually date to the 18th and early 19th centuries.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 J.Kemble.
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The Parish of Hadstock (in the Hundred of Freshwell).

There is no Tithe Award for Hadstock, enclosure having taken place earlier in the 19th century. The place- and field-names in the following table are taken from the Enclosure Award (Essex Record Office: Q/RDc 7a) dated 1810, the Enclosure Maps (ERO: D/DQy 28 and Q/RDc 7b) dated c.1805, from Chapman & André’s Map surveyed in 1774 and published in 1777, and from the 1st edition 6” Ordnance Survey Map, c.1880. The Commissioners for the Enclosure Award were Abraham Purhouse Drive of Kent Road, Surrey, John Dugmore of Swaffham, Norfolk and Edward Hare of Castor, Northants.  The Enclosure Map (ERO: Q/RDc 7b) was surveyed by Martin Nockolds at a scale of 13.3” to a mile., and measures 24”x30”
In 1008 King Æthelred granted estates including  two cassati (hides) at Caddanno to Ely monastery in return for £9 in gold paid by Abbot Ælfsige. In 1029x35 Abbot Leofsinus with the consent of King Cnut settled food-rents to Ely monastery, Kadenho to provide four days’ supply. In 1042x66 King Edward confirmed Hadestoc to Ely (Hart, 1971). In Domesday Book, 1086, St Ethelreda’s, Ely, still held Cadenhov as a manor for two hides, with a mill in 1066 but none by 1086 (Morris, 1983).  Watts (2004) translates these from Old English hoh, ‘Cadda’s hill-spur’, and stoc, ‘Hada’s outlying farm’ (VCH, 1903). Stoc often signifies a ‘religious place’, and the name may have this connotation, perhaps in relation to Cnut’s minster church (Kemble, 2007). 
There were two manors: 1. Hadstock Hall - In 1337 the Bishop of London was granted a market and fair.  Acquiring it in 1600, Sir Thomas Sutton, founder of Guy’s Hospital London, in 1611 bequeathed it to Thomas earl of Suffolk. 2. Segons alias Vances - t.John, a fine passed between Alured son of Gilbert and Martin Bedekester (Morant, 1768).
The church dedicated to St Botolph may be the minster built by Cnut after the battle against King Edmund on 8th October 1016, in which died many including monks from Ely. The present church is 11th century built on earlier foundations, possibly 7th century. Hadstock Hall was built c.1600. Hill Farm has jettied cross wings, 15th century (Pevsner, 2007). In Red Field a Romano-British villa with mosaic pavement and bath-house has been excavated (Kemble, 2009).

The Hundred name is recorded in Domesday Book as Frossewella, Frosscewella, and as frosseuuelle in Inquisitio Eliensis, 1086.  This is translated from O.E. forsc wielle, ‘frogs’ stream or spring’, a reference to a headwater of the River Pant.  Christy (1926) identifies the spring as that serving the little lake by Little Sampford Hall, and that the moot was by the ford close by or at a moated enclosure 300 yards to the west, by the road to Great Sampford where there was an enclosure in Arber field, eorth-burh, ‘land with an earthwork’ (marked Moat on the Ordnance Survey map, c.1875). There is a field marked Moat field on the Tithe Award of Little Sampford (parcel no 283), 1300 yards southwest of the church, and Motlande is recorded in  the Court Rolls, 1592 (Kemble, 2008).  
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Chapman & André Map.

	Rec Off
	Ref. No.
	Date of Docmt
	 Place-name
	 Alias
	Grd Ref
	X
	y
	Type
	Owner
	Other information

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Chapman&André
	1777
	Hadstock Wood
	
	TL
	559
	445
	wood
	
	

	
	Chapman&André
	1777
	Hadstock Common
	
	TL
	551
	440
	
	
	


Enclosure Maps.
	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Argus Pieces
	
	TL
	555
	446
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Ash Brade Shot
	
	TL
	567
	455
	field
	Chalk, Richard
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Bonfire Hill
	
	TL
	558
	455
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Brakey Park
	
	TL
	560
	444
	
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Brownwell Shot
	
	TL
	566
	454
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Beches Holm
	
	TL
	571
	460
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Cats Brain Shot
	
	TL
	558
	456
	field
	Malthus, Sydenham, esq
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Claydons Grove Shot
	
	TL
	557
	446
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Cockarell Garden Shot
	
	TL
	575
	450
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Coopers Balk Shot
	
	TL
	560
	460
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Danes Croft
	
	TL
	555
	446
	field
	
	see Kemble, J., Essex Place-names, Places, Streets & People, Historical Publications , 2007, p40.

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Danes Wood
	
	TL
	554
	446
	wood
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Elm Tree Shot
	
	TL
	
	
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Emsons Shot
	
	TL
	565
	437
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Gilden Shot
	
	TL
	558
	458
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Haws Hill Shot
	
	TL
	563
	455
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Headberry Grove
	
	TL
	562
	444
	wood
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Holm Shot
	
	TL
	570
	460
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Knaves Gap Shot
	
	TL
	565
	453
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Linton Wood Pieces
	
	TL
	554
	453
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Lower Bartlow Shot
	
	TL
	
	
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Moodey Shot
	
	TL
	
	
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Millers Close
	
	TL
	
	
	
	Claydon, Henry
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Nursery Shot
	
	TL
	
	
	field
	Keene, Benjamin, esq
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Over Thwart Shot
	
	TL
	
	
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Parkers Croft
	
	TL
	556
	446
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Portway Shot
	
	TL
	576
	446
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Potswell Shot
	
	TL
	568
	438
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Quick Fence Shot
	
	TL
	558
	456
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Red Field
	
	TL
	563
	465
	field
	Taylor, Robert
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Rettches Shot
	
	TL
	
	
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Short Danes
	
	TL
	577
	442
	field
	Smoothey, Buck
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Sour Stockings
	
	TL
	554
	442
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Westby Shot
	
	TL
	
	
	field
	
	

	ERO
	D/DQy 28
	c.1805
	Woodfield Shot
	
	TL
	569
	442
	
	Malthus, Sydenham, esq
	

	ERO
	Q/RDc 7b
	c.1805
	Bradberry Grove
	
	TL
	570
	440
	wood
	
	

	ERO
	Q/RDc 7b
	c.1805
	Tottishall Grove
	
	TL
	571
	442
	wood
	
	?O.E. tot = look out place.


Enclosure Award.
	ERO
	Q/RDc 7a
	1810
	Danes Croft
	
	TL
	555
	446
	
	
	

	ERO
	Q/RDc 7a
	1810
	Townsend ffield
	
	TL
	
	
	
	
	

	ERO
	Q/RDc 7a
	1810
	Great Eintone
	
	TL
	
	
	
	
	

	ERO
	Q/RDc 7a
	1810
	Sour Stockings
	
	TL
	554
	442
	
	
	


1st edition 6” Ordnance Survey Map.

	
	6" OS map
	c.1880
	Chalky Road
	
	TL
	568
	456
	
	
	

	
	6" OS map
	c.1880
	Croquet Ground
	
	TL
	567
	461
	
	
	

	
	6" OS map
	c.1880
	Glebe Farm
	
	TL
	556
	446
	
	
	

	
	6" OS map
	c.1880
	Halfway House
	
	TL
	559
	455
	
	
	

	
	6" OS map
	c.1880
	Haw's Hill 271.7 [ft]
	
	TL
	562
	455
	
	
	

	
	6" OS map
	c.1880
	Lordship Farm
	
	TL
	559
	448
	
	
	

	
	6" OS map
	c.1880
	Lower Farm
	
	TL
	564
	450
	
	
	

	
	6" OS map
	c.1880
	Malting
	
	TL
	566
	463
	
	
	

	
	6" OS map
	c.1880
	Manor Ho.
	Caddanno, 1008,K725; Hadestoc,1042x66,K907
	TL
	559
	448
	
	
	

	
	6" OS map
	c.1880
	Morris's Farm
	
	TL
	556
	447
	
	
	

	
	6" OS map
	c.1880
	New Farm
	
	TL
	573
	450
	
	
	

	
	6" OS map
	c.1880
	Pen Farm
	
	TL
	550
	446
	
	
	

	
	6" OS map
	c.1880
	Pottishall
	
	TL
	570
	438
	par.bndry
	
	

	
	6" OS map
	c.1880
	St Botolph's Church
	
	TL
	560
	449
	
	
	

	
	6" OS map
	c.1880
	Siggin's Lane
	
	TL
	564
	445
	
	
	

	
	6" OS map
	c.1880
	The Lays
	
	TL
	552
	455
	field
	
	

	
	6" OS map
	c.1880
	The Rectory
	
	TL
	560
	448
	
	
	

	
	6" OS map
	c.1880
	Windmill (Corn)
	
	TL
	567
	461
	mill
	
	

	
	6" OS map
	c.1880
	Woodfield
	
	TL
	561
	447
	
	
	

	
	6" OS map
	c.1880
	River Granta
	Gronte, c.745,Felix; Grantan stream, c.890, Bede
	TL
	572
	458
	
	
	British river name = muddy


For abbreviations see Reaney, P., Place-names of Essex. Cambridge 1935; and Kemble, J., Essex Place-names, Places, Streets & People. Historical Publications, 2007, p 153.
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   Hadstock parish in the County of Essex.
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